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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

          3  Summertime and the living is easy. Summer fun. What

          4  better way to kick off some hot summer fun that

          5  global warming, right? Good afternoon. I'm Council

          6  Member Jim Gennaro, Chair of the Council's Committee

          7  on Environmental Protection. Thank you all for being

          8  here today to participate in this hearing on Intro.

          9  No. 20, the New York City Climate Protection Act.

         10  Today's hearing I believe is particularly timely. It

         11  comes at a time when attention to the issue of

         12  global warming is building dramatically.

         13                 One major reason is former vice

         14  president Al Gore's film, An Inconvenient Truth, a

         15  film that is really forcing Americans, many for the

         16  first time, to face head on the tremendous

         17  scientific evidence that supports global warming,

         18  the great and catastrophic threat that global

         19  warming poses, the overwhelming imperative that does

         20  exist to address the problem of global warming and

         21  to address it now.

         22                 Despite the bill's intention, the

         23  question could still be asked, does it really matter

         24  if New York City is a leader in the fight against

         25  global warming? And my answer, of course, is a
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          2  resounding yes, and I would like to tell you why.

          3                 First, New York City is the largest

          4  city in the US, and one of the largest in the world.

          5  When New York City speaks, people definitely listen.

          6                 So, when this City makes a clear,

          7  strong statement that global warming pollution is a

          8  grave threat to our health, environment and economy,

          9  and that the City is committed to being a long-term

         10  leader in the fight against it, then governments,

         11  private businesses and others will listen, and I

         12  believe will follow our lead.

         13                 Second, it is in our City's self

         14  interest to lead the fight against global warming.

         15  This is because the consequences of global warming

         16  could be utterly catastrophic to New York City.

         17                 The Earth Institute at Columbia

         18  predicts temperature rises in the City of between

         19  four degrees and 10 degrees Fahrenheit by the year

         20  2080. Let's take a look at what a four to 10 degree

         21  temperature increase would mean for the City.

         22                 It would mean worsening air pollution

         23  and higher rates of respiratory illness and disease,

         24  such as asthma and lung cancer. It would also mean

         25  an increased range of infectivity of
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          2  disease-carrying insects. Raising the impact of such

          3  public health scourges, such as Lime Disease and

          4  West Nile Virus. It would mean a permanent loss of

          5  beaches and coastlines, and the critical economies

          6  that go with them, and the permanent loss of

          7  wetlands, marshes and other critical wildlife

          8  habitat.

          9                 Also, a four to 10 degree increase

         10  would mean flooding and storm damage to the City's

         11  critical infrastructure or roadways, airports,

         12  tunnels and bridges and so on, it would mean reduced

         13  ability of New York's water supply system to meet

         14  our needs, and it would mean substantially-increased

         15  power demand, thus compounding pressure on the

         16  already taxed power grid, and escalating the risk of

         17  its failure.

         18                 And the final reason that New York

         19  City should be a leader in defining its global

         20  warming is because the efforts we take will not only

         21  fight global warming, but they will also have other

         22  positive effects; it will save us money, but among

         23  other things, cutting power and fuel use,

         24  dramatically improve our City's air quality by

         25  reducing the pollution that is associated with
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          2  fossil fuel use and power generation.

          3                 And, finally, our efforts to fight

          4  global warming will ultimately make New York City a

          5  much more sustainable place to work, improving the

          6  quality of life in our communities by cleaning our

          7  air, having us have more efficient buildings,

          8  offices, and other land uses.

          9                 So, the bill we're hearing today,

         10  Intro. No. 20, will help to establish New York City

         11  as a clear, long-term leader in the fight against

         12  global warming, and it will accomplish this by, for

         13  the first time, setting out in law a comprehensive

         14  long-term City commitment with concrete emission

         15  reductions, plans and measures to lead the fight

         16  against global warming.

         17                 This commitment would mesh already

         18  aggressive, yet attainable long-term reductions,

         19  including a 30 percent reduction in the City's

         20  global warming pollution by 2020, with specific

         21  plans and affordable actions to get to that level.

         22                 And the City's commitment to fighting

         23  global warming would also extend beyond City

         24  operations. The bill we have before us today would

         25  create mechanisms for the City to encourage and
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          2  assist private entities to reduce their global

          3  warming pollution, as well.

          4                 But before closing my opening

          5  statement, I would like to recognize, and also

          6  congratulate, the City for its commitments it

          7  already made regarding global warming.

          8                 For example, in 2001, New York City

          9  joined the City's for Climate Protection Campaign, a

         10  project of the International Council for local

         11  environmental initiatives.

         12                 Last year the City signed onto the US

         13  Conference of Mayors' Climate Protection Agreement,

         14  and in several recent statements, Mayor Bloomberg

         15  himself has made it clear that he understands the

         16  importance that the City promotes the sustainability

         17  by finding long-term solutions to problems and

         18  fighting global warming pollution.

         19                 As I said before, my bill, Intro. No.

         20  20, brings together aggressive, yet attainable

         21  long-term targets for reducing global warming

         22  pollution, with specific plans and actions to make

         23  them real.

         24                 As such, I believe this legislation

         25  fully compliments and properly builds on the City's
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          2  commitments and the Mayor's recent statements on

          3  fighting global warming. And I certainly look

          4  forward to working with the Administration on this

          5  legislation, and our City's long-term commitment to

          6  fighting global warming.

          7                 I've just been informed that one of

          8  the other Council members, Peter Vallone, Jr., who

          9  is also a crusader against global warming, has his

         10  own legislative initiative, that is not the subject

         11  of today's hearing, certain is an important bill,

         12  and has asked for the opportunity to make a

         13  statement regarding his global warming efforts, and

         14  as Chair I'll certainly give Peter a little latitude

         15  to make a statement. A little bit of latitude to

         16  make a statement on his bill.

         17                 I recognize Council Member Vallone.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you,

         19  Mr. Chair. I have to leave for two other hearings,

         20  plus it's my day to pick up the kids, so I just want

         21  to let you know that I fully support your efforts

         22  and would like to be added to this bill. And I mean,

         23  I'm so supportive of your efforts here, and you know

         24  we've worked together on this. The first bill I ever

         25  introduced as a City Council member was the C02
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          2  bill, which the goal to reduce the carbon dioxide

          3  emissions from our power plants. And the only reason

          4  you and I have slowed down on that bill, is because

          5  the State has entered into an agreement with many

          6  other states to rectify this situation by 2009, and

          7  as that process goes on, we are holding back on our

          8  process.

          9                 But I commend you for moving forward

         10  with this bill.

         11                 There are science on both sides of

         12  this issue, we're heard that many times. As I argue

         13  against cell phone towers across the street from

         14  schools, many times, if there are science on both

         15  sides, then we don't know for sure yet. And if we

         16  don't know for sure, we need to take every possible

         17  precaution we can to prevent global warming. We owe

         18  it to our kids and we owe it to our grand kids. So,

         19  I just wanted to support your efforts here today. I

         20  apologize for having to leave, and I look forward to

         21  the results of this hearing.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         23  Peter.

         24                 And I want to recognize the other

         25  members of the Council who are here. Council Member
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          2  Lanza from Staten Island. Council Member Vallone we

          3  have already heard from, of course. Council Member

          4  Koppell from the Bronx. And also, before we

          5  commence, I'd like to have read into the record some

          6  excerpts from some testimony from Robert Fox, Jr.,

          7  who is a partner in Cook and Fox Architects who is a

          8  leading green building mover and shaker, and wanted

          9  to be here very much, and his testimony is very

         10  compelling and I'd like to ask Counsel to the

         11  Committee, Donna DeCostanzo, to read it into the

         12  record, to be followed by our first witness, which

         13  will be Bob Kulikowski from the Mayor's Office of

         14  Environmental Coordination.

         15                 So, Donna, if you could read the

         16  excerpted sections of the testimony, I would

         17  appreciate it.

         18                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: To the members of the

         19  Committee on Environmental Protection: I am writing

         20  to give my enthusiastic support to Introduction No.

         21  20, which aims to curb New York City's emissions of

         22  harmful greenhouse gases.

         23                 Working together with the City, the

         24  private sector and the public can and must make

         25  rapid, meaningful progress in addressing the threat
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          2  of climate change.

          3                 New York City's buildings, not only

          4  its skyscrapers but also its many thousands of

          5  commercial residential institution buildings will

          6  play a crucial role in combatting climate change.

          7                 Buildings can be constructed and

          8  operated to a new high standard of energy

          9  efficiencies and existing technology similar to

         10  buildings throughout Western Europe. Vegetated green

         11  roofs and high-albedo roof surfaces, combined with

         12  improved stormwater retention, can dramatically

         13  decrease the urban heat island effect. Green

         14  buildings can actually improve the air that people

         15  breathe indoors, by filtering out pollutants and

         16  eliminating common indoor environmental

         17  contaminants.

         18                 As others have noted, a density like

         19  New York already possesses tremendous advantages in

         20  the widespread use of public transportation and

         21  energy use of multi-story buildings.

         22                 Furthermore, few places rival New

         23  York City's position in the financial, cultural and

         24  media spotlight: action taken here is observed by

         25  others across the country and around the world.
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          2  Leadership on climate change can therefore do a

          3  great deal to raise the profile of green building

          4  and other strategies for a more sustainable future.

          5                 As more industries and individuals

          6  recognize the growing imperative of sustainable

          7  economies, we will witness a market transformation

          8  that rewards those on the leading edge of the

          9  environmental learning curve.

         10                 The introduction of a New York City

         11  Climate Protection Act will pave the way for the

         12  planning, education and investment that is necessary

         13  to meet the formidable challenge ahead of us. I urge

         14  the City Council to set an ambitious agenda, keeping

         15  in mind the wise words of the Great Law of the

         16  Iroquois Confederacy: "In our every deliberation, we

         17  must consider the impact of our decisions on the

         18  next seven generations."

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         20  you, Donna.

         21                 And so I'll have to call our first

         22  witness, Bob Kulikowski.

         23                 Just before Bob starts, I just want

         24  to thank him publicly. Of course, I made reference

         25  to the efforts made by the Administration on, you
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          2  know, fighting global warming and the Mayor's

          3  statements, and as many folks here know, the

          4  architect and the driver behind this

          5  Administration's good record on fighting global

          6  warming is none other than our witness today Bob.

          7  And so I'm very happy to have you here.

          8                 You know, we want to use this bill to

          9  help you and the Mayor do what you want to do. And

         10  now that we're responsible for seven generations

         11  down, we have to go forward in a very aggressive

         12  way. So we look forward to your testimony. We

         13  welcome you here. Donna will give the oath, and then

         14  you can proceed with your testimony.

         15                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         16  right hand.

         17                 In the testimony that you're about to

         18  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         19  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         20                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: I do.

         21                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         22                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: Good afternoon,

         23  Chairman Gennaro, and thank you, members of the

         24  Committee, thank you for those very kind remarks, I

         25  really appreciate it. We have worked very hard to
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          2  address this very serious issue.

          3                 I am Robert Kulikowski, and I am the

          4  Director of the New York City Office of

          5  Environmental Coordination, and I thank you for the

          6  opportunity to comment on Intro 20, the New York

          7  City Climate Protection Act.

          8                 As you did recognize, the Mayor and

          9  the Administration strongly support the intent of

         10  this legislation, the reduction of greenhouse gases

         11  from City operations.

         12                 There is a growing body of scientific

         13  evidence that clearly indicates that the earth is

         14  becoming warmer and this climate change is largely

         15  due to anthropogenic sources.

         16                 Last year the U.S. National Academy

         17  of Science, along with the science academies of ten

         18  other countries, issued a joint statement on global

         19  response to climate change.

         20                 They acknowledge that climate change

         21  was real, and the academies made several

         22  recommendations for world leaders, among which are

         23  identification of cost-effective steps that can be

         24  taken to reduce greenhouse gas emissions, to work

         25  with developing nations to help mitigate and adapt
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          2  to adverse effects of climate change, while

          3  recognizing their legitimate development rights, and

          4  to show leadership in developing and deploying clean

          5  energy technologies and approaches to energy

          6  efficiency.

          7                 Clearly, this is not solely a New

          8  York City issue but rather a global one, and one

          9  that needs to be addressed globally.

         10                 And while it is important to act

         11  locally, as you said, New York City is an absolute

         12  leader, and what New York City does other people pay

         13  attention to, we must place this location action

         14  into the global context and not fool ourselves into

         15  thinking that just by acting alone in New York City

         16  we will solve the problem.

         17                 The introductory language to the bill

         18  is a little bit misleading, implying that we can

         19  avoid dire consequences of climate change by

         20  reducing our own government's emissions.

         21                 It is an important step to take, and

         22  as New York City is being recognized more and more

         23  as a leader in sustainability and I just will add

         24  parenthetically, for the second year in a row the

         25  core profit organization Sustain Lane in California
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          2  has ranked New York number seven in the top 50

          3  largest cities in the United States as the most

          4  sustainable, one of the most sustainable cities. So,

          5  we do have a very good track record and it's being

          6  recognized by a number of people.

          7                 And additionally, Mayor Bloomberg and

          8  the Administration do recognize the seriousness of

          9  this issue, and that's why we've taken a number of

         10  steps to address greenhouse gas emissions from City

         11  operations.

         12                 Just in 2002, the Office of

         13  Environmental Coordination was charged with

         14  conducting a greenhouse gas inventory personally to

         15  the Cities for Climate Protection Campaign, or CCP,

         16  a voluntary non-binding initiative and developing an

         17  action plan to reduce emissions.

         18                 I am very pleased to inform you that

         19  this inventory and an accompanying analysis of

         20  current and planned City greenhouse gas emissions

         21  reductions measures have been completed and will be

         22  published on OEC's website by the end of this month.

         23                 Currently we are using CCP's target

         24  of a 20 percent reduction over the base year of 1995

         25  for 2010, and I have to emphasize that this is a
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          2  working target number, developing an actual target,

          3  which we hope will be higher for reduction, will

          4  depend on the components of the action plan which

          5  need to take into account, cost effectiveness,

          6  feasibility and impact on the City's economic

          7  growth.

          8                 Our initial analysis indicates that

          9  the City anticipates an approximately 12 percent

         10  reduction in greenhouse gas emissions by 2010 over

         11  1995 levels through current and planned measures, so

         12  that if we stop doing what we are currently doing

         13  and just implement the things that are on the books,

         14  we would have a 12 percent reduction.

         15                 It is important to note, however,

         16  that had the City not done anything, had not taken

         17  measures to reduce its emissions, the emissions

         18  would have increased by 14 percent since 1995 by

         19  2010. So, we not only are reducing, we're preventing

         20  a 14 percent increase and we're reducing by 12

         21  percent over that.

         22                 Clearly, our efforts are moving this

         23  in the right direction, but we have more work to do

         24  over the next four years to achieve our target

         25  reduction of over 20 percent.
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          2                 The next step in the CCP process is

          3  the development and implementation of an action plan

          4  to reach this target.

          5                 We expect to complete this plan by

          6  the end of this year.

          7                 In addition, the City is planning to

          8  partner with the academic community and

          9  environmental advocates to complete an emissions

         10  inventory and reduction plan for the private sector.

         11                 These reductions have been achieved

         12  by means of a number of concrete actions.

         13                 For example, replacement of

         14  incandescent traffic control devices with light

         15  emitting diodes, or LEDs, has reduced energy use by

         16  these devices by 80 percent, saving the City more

         17  than $7 million per year, and cutting carbon dioxide

         18  emissions by more than 25,000 tons per year.

         19                 All City school boilers have now been

         20  converted from coal-fired boilers to natural gas or

         21  oil, again reducing emissions of greenhouse gases.

         22                 The City's Energy Cost Reduction

         23  Program, or ENCORE, a partnership with the New York

         24  Power Authority, reduces greenhouse gas emissions by

         25  almost 150,000 times per year and results in an
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          2  annual savings of nearly $20 million.

          3                 In 2003 Mayor Bloomberg formed the

          4  Energy Policy Task Force. Among this task force's 28

          5  recommendations was that the City create and

          6  implement a broad-based energy management plan, to

          7  improve energy efficiency in City of New York

          8  facilities, and this initiative has begun.

          9                 In 2004, Mayor Bloomberg formed the

         10  City's Task Force on Sustainability. One of the key

         11  issues that this task force is addressing is climate

         12  change. Energy issues such as efficiency and

         13  conservation are properly paired with greenhouse gas

         14  emissions in this venue, allowing the needs of the

         15  City to be addressed, balancing necessary economic

         16  growth with cost effectiveness.

         17                 As a City, we certainly do not want

         18  to stifle or impede economic growth by capping

         19  energy use just to reduce greenhouse gas emissions.

         20                 This is embodied in the key

         21  recommendations of the science academies,

         22  identification of cost-effective steps to reduce

         23  greenhouse gas emissions and recognition of

         24  legitimate development.

         25                 Also, in 2004, the City's Department
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          2  of Environmental Protection formed an agency-wide

          3  climate change task force. The DEP task force which

          4  has worked collaboratively with Columbia

          5  University's Center for Climate Systems Research is

          6  addressing the potential impacts of climate change

          7  on the City's water supply and wastewater treatment

          8  facilities, and coordinating overall climate change,

          9  adaptation and mitigation efforts as part of its

         10  long-term planning efforts, another key

         11  recommendation of the science academies.

         12                 As DEP's efforts progress over the

         13  next several years, the agency will be assessing

         14  costs associated with adapting to potential climate

         15  change impacts.

         16                 The City is now planning to expand

         17  these efforts at DEP and address the potential

         18  impacts on other agencies' resources.

         19                 To address mitigation, DEP has

         20  initiated the development of a management plan for

         21  reducing where practicable the emissions from its

         22  sewer and water facilities and operations.

         23                 DEP's long-term goal is to develop an

         24  inventory and management plan for each facility to

         25  be implemented over time.
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          2                 Many reduction opportunities are cost

          3  effective and feasible only if integrated with

          4  facility upgrades and new facility designs.

          5                 DEP's approach recognizes the

          6  complexities of greenhouse gas inventories and

          7  management and that the potential opportunities and

          8  methods for reducing emissions differ by agency and

          9  by specific facility.

         10                 As was mentioned by Council Member

         11  Vallone, the City is also involved in state and

         12  regional greenhouse gas reduction efforts as the

         13  City's Economic Development Corporation, Law

         14  Department and OEC have been actively participating

         15  in the development of rules governing the Regional

         16  Greenhouse Initiative or RGGI. Actually, the City

         17  has just commented on the model rule that RGGI will

         18  be promulgating this summer and which will go

         19  directly into draft rules for the State of New York,

         20  which they anticipate to have out this fall. So

         21  we're moving aggressively on that. And all the

         22  agencies I just mentioned are actively involved in

         23  the promulgation of rules.

         24                 In addition, OEC is in the process of

         25  revising its website to include information for the
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          2  public on the potential impacts of climate change on

          3  the City to educate the public about what they can

          4  do to help reduce greenhouse gas emissions.

          5                 And as Chairman Gennaro noted, last

          6  year Mayor Bloomberg signed the U.S. Conference of

          7  Mayors resolution on Climate Change, an important

          8  step in addressing global climate change and

          9  demonstrating New York City's leading by example

         10  philosophy.

         11                 Achieving the U.S. Mayor's Climate

         12  Protection Agreement voluntary Citywide reduction of

         13  seven percent over 1990 levels by 2012 will be

         14  addressed through the City's community local action

         15  plan completed as part of the Cities for Climate

         16  Protection Campaign, and we've actually outstripped

         17  that goal already.

         18                 Lastly, the City, in collaboration

         19  with the Partnership for New York City, the Climate

         20  Group and the Rockefeller Brothers Fund will hose a

         21  summit for leading world cities and businesses in

         22  the spring of 2007 to discuss the economic

         23  opportunities related to reductions in greenhouse

         24  gas emissions.

         25                 I was speaking with Cathy Wylde, the
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          2  president of the Partnership, yesterday and they

          3  have just brought on board a full-time person to

          4  manage this and coordinate it among all of the

          5  involved parties.

          6                 Such actions underscore the

          7  Administration's commitment to greenhouse gas

          8  reduction from City operations. However, the

          9  approach of this proposed legislation makes it sound

         10  as if climate change and greenhouse gas reduction

         11  strategies were an exact science, and,

         12  unfortunately, they are not at this point, that can

         13  be measured as easily as measuring the air

         14  temperature.

         15                 Fortunately, this is not the case.

         16  Calculations of emissions require complex computer

         17  models that use data from city records. The end

         18  result is only as good as the data that are input.

         19                 At best, and even ICLEI recognizes

         20  this, these inventories are trend analyses, they're

         21  intended to be used only to help guide policy

         22  decisions. As such, it isn't possible to guarantee

         23  that succeeding years will have lower emission

         24  inventories than the preceding year.

         25                 There are many factors that are
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          2  beyond the City's control that influence emissions

          3  from City operations. Greenhouse gas emissions from

          4  the City's building sector account for about

          5  three-quarters of the City's inventory.

          6                 A year with a mild winter and a cool

          7  summer, followed by a year with a colder than normal

          8  winter and exceptionally hot summer make this

          9  requirement difficult, if not impossible, to

         10  achieve.

         11                 Further, constraints such as

         12  regulatory requirements could also preclude this as

         13  a possibility. For example, under mandate, the City

         14  is constructing too extremely large and very

         15  energy-intensive water treatment facilities.

         16  Off-sets for emissions when such large, new

         17  facilities come on line may not be feasible in any

         18  one year.

         19                 While the legislation defines

         20  "indirect emissions" it does not place any

         21  parameters on them. While emissions due to electric

         22  power generation are relatively straightforward,

         23  there are other City activities that are not so

         24  clear cut.

         25                 For example, the purchase of a
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          2  computer involves the energy efficiency of the

          3  actual machine, the energy used in its production,

          4  including the factory-lighting, HVAC, workers' use

          5  of gasoline to get to work and so forth, and the

          6  fuel used in the cargo plane or truck to deliver the

          7  computer to New York City.

          8                 My point is that this legislation as

          9  drafted oversimplifies a complex issue both

         10  scientifically and technically in the preparation of

         11  inventories, subsequent analyses and so forth.

         12                 Given such complexity, the bill's

         13  predominant focus on cutting energy use is probably

         14  not the best way to go. The Mayor's Task Force on

         15  Sustainability is taking a much more encompassing

         16  approach to examine how the City can best minimize,

         17  or counteract, greenhouse gas emissions.

         18                 Approaches such as augmenting tree

         19  planting to offset necessary emissions, reducing

         20  vehicle miles traveled and increasing fuel

         21  efficiency of vehicles, procurement of energy from

         22  green sources and similar approaches would provide a

         23  much more comprehensive and effective approach to

         24  this issue.

         25                 Finally, it is stated that the
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          2  Council believes that additional cost effective

          3  reductions in emissions could be achieved beyond the

          4  goal, 20 percent, that the City could and should

          5  make a greater effort to reduce global warming

          6  pollution. Yet, there is no justification provided

          7  for this belief. Have any analyses, such as economic

          8  modeling, been performed to indicate that such

          9  reductions will not impede the City's ability to

         10  provide necessary services as the overall New York

         11  City economy grows?

         12                 I would like to remind Chairman

         13  Gennaro and the committee that the Administration

         14  met with Council staff in November of last year for

         15  the purposes of further explaining the

         16  Administration's position relating to this bill. At

         17  that time, the Council agreed to meet with the

         18  Administration to cooperatively draft a bill that

         19  might help achieve our common goal, the reduction of

         20  greenhouse gas emissions, in a manner that was

         21  acceptable to all parties. To date, we have not

         22  heard back from the Council regarding this.

         23                 Also, I have attached copies of

         24  comments from Environmental Defense and Clean Air -

         25  Cool Planet from last year on Intro. 661. When
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          2  reintroducing Intro. 661 and Intro. 20 of this year,

          3  none of the comments from these organizations have

          4  appeared to have been considered.

          5                 In summary, I reiterate that Mayor

          6  Bloomberg and his Administration strongly support

          7  the goal of reducing greenhouse gas emissions as a

          8  "lead-by-example" partner in the global community.

          9  While New York City's efforts in this arena are

         10  important, this is an issue that must be faced

         11  worldwide. The mechanics by which reduction should

         12  occur as proposed in this legislation appear not to

         13  be perhaps the most effective way for the City to

         14  deal with the greenhouse gas issue. However, I would

         15  like to continue the dialogue that the

         16  Administration and the Council have begun in the

         17  interest of advancing this important -- you know,

         18  addressing this important issue.

         19                 I will be happy to answer any

         20  questions.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         22  you, Bob. Yes, I do have some questions. I just have

         23  to consult with Council for a few seconds.

         24                 And we're happy to be joined by

         25  Council Member Mark-Viverito. Melissa, it's good to
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          2  see you.

          3                 Yes, as you stated, we were working

          4  on this last year and I look forward to working with

          5  the Administration. And I don't know if we had an

          6  actual agreement, but you know, we got involved in

          7  the Noise Bill and other things.

          8                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: Yes, other things got

          9  in the way. I understand that.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And so we look

         11  forward to continuing to get to the goal that we

         12  both want.

         13                 And also, in your statement you

         14  indicate that while it's important to act locally,

         15  which you recognize, and you indicate that we must

         16  not fool ourselves into thinking that by taking

         17  action in New York City we'll solve the problem, but

         18  don't you think it's important that we sort of push

         19  the limit and do absolutely everything we can when

         20  our City has so much to --

         21                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: Sure. We should be

         22  doing absolutely as much as we possibly can.

         23                 As I said, not only in the climate

         24  change, in a bunch of other environmental arenas,

         25  such as Brownfields, the rest of this country, and
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          2  the world indeed look to New York City as an example

          3  of how to do things.

          4                 So, no, I couldn't underscore enough

          5  the importance of having New York lead by example.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Great.

          7                 Are there any estimates of the

          8  potential costs to the City for the impacts of

          9  global warming, including engineering and other

         10  infrastructure-related actions the City may need to

         11  take or to prevent or mitigate these impacts.

         12                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: At this point we

         13  don't have any hard numbers. I believe our

         14  colleagues at DEP are actually working on that, and

         15  it will probably be some time before they actually

         16  have hard numbers. But that's exactly what they're

         17  looking at, as part of the long-term planning for

         18  their capital projects.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Is there any

         20  monitoring of current global warming impacts on the

         21  City?

         22                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: I'm not quite sure --

         23  when I saw the question late on Monday, I wasn't

         24  quite sure what you mean.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Are there
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          2  models? For a task force to exist within DEP

          3  presumably there are impacts that are either seen

          4  now or contemplated or whatever. I'm just wondering

          5  if we're doing any sort of active measurement of

          6  global warming impacts on New York City right now.

          7                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: Yes, I mean --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I guess the

          9  premise of the question, that, you know, global

         10  warming is happening right now and so we're bearing

         11  some brunt of that, and are we monitoring that?

         12                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: Well, I think what

         13  DEP is using in conjunction with their partnership

         14  with Columbia, they're looking at a number of planet

         15  change models to see what the impacts would be on

         16  the City's infrastructure, and while it is

         17  DEP-centric right now, the idea is to expand this so

         18  that other City agencies that have infrastructure

         19  that couldn't possibly be affected by the effects of

         20  climate change would also be folded into this.

         21                 But you know, it's a new process for

         22  everybody right now. A lot of places just, you know,

         23  there is a lot of anecdotal evidence. I think people

         24  now believe that the science is real and this is a

         25  real phenomenon. But it's still relatively new and
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          2  planning for it is probably going to take some time.

          3                 You know, I've read that even if all

          4  carbon emissions stopped right now, they're still

          5  going to have an impact 50 years down the road. We

          6  really have to combine both mitigation with

          7  adaptation. I think that's the approach that the

          8  City is taking. So, we need to adapt to some future

          9  change, and even though we don't know specifically

         10  that's it's going to be, you know, a meter sea level

         11  rise, or half a meter or what have you, you know, we

         12  need to be prepared to address that when it comes,

         13  but we also need to act currently to reduce to the

         14  greatest extent possible, to mitigate emissions that

         15  we're producing. And when I say we, I think, you

         16  know, this is globally.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right now, as

         18  you stated, the task force is DEP centric, as you

         19  said. Is there a timetable for sort of broadening

         20  that to the other players in City government?

         21                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: I don't know that

         22  there is a specific timetable.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You mentioned

         24  the City's sign on to the U.S. Conference of Mayors

         25  seven percent reduction; what analyses did the City
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          2  conduct to determine the economic impact of this

          3  commitment before signing on?

          4                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: Actually, when we

          5  looked at the -- it's basically the Kiedo (phonetic)

          6  commitment of seven percent by 2012 over 1990

          7  levels. And because our greenhouse gas inventory has

          8  shown that we've reduced beyond that already, what

          9  we're doing now, there's not going to be an economic

         10  impacts, we didn't do any further analysis. By

         11  knowing that we were ahead of the Kiedo target

         12  already, we didn't feel that that was necessary.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, are there

         14  plans to go beyond that target? I mean, what we're

         15  getting to is sort of like the -- I guess the

         16  philosophical underpinnings of your argument to sort

         17  of not set the thresholds that we contemplate in the

         18  bill, is that it's inexact science, and you have to

         19  do modeling, and you have to model to do modeling,

         20  and this is very complicated and you can't

         21  understand those other factors that are beyond our

         22  control. And so I guess what we're trying to get at

         23  is at some point you have to make a commitment to

         24  sort of go beyond the fact that life is not an exact

         25  science.
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          2                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: Right, and we realize

          3  that. You can just do so many iterations and finally

          4  you've got to, you know, jump off the diving board.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          6                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: And actually, that's

          7  the plan as we move forward with developing the

          8  climate action plan. That's when those analyses will

          9  be done. Because as I said, we're using 20 percent

         10  as a working target right now, and the

         11  administration wants to be as aggressive as

         12  possible, so if it's only 18 percent that we can do,

         13  that we feel that's economically feasible without

         14  compromising other City functions, so be it, but if

         15  we can do 23 percent or 25 percent --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thirty, 25 or

         17  30.

         18                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: But you get my gist.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         20                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: You know, as we go

         21  through this process, it's an iterative process, and

         22  as we have more information about how, you know,

         23  what target we can meet, we want to meet the most

         24  aggressive target, and establish the most aggressive

         25  target.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. Let me

          3  just quote the Mayor. In a speech at John's Hopkins

          4  the Mayor recently stated, "You can see the

          5  political science at work when it comes to global

          6  warming, despite near anonymity in the science

          7  community, there is now a movement driven by

          8  ideology and short-term economics to ignore the

          9  evidence and discredit the reality of climate

         10  change." And do you share the Mayor's opinion?

         11                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: Absolutely.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: What do you

         13  think he had in mind when he said "short-term

         14  economics?"

         15                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: I don't know. I can't

         16  really speak for what the Mayor said, but, you know,

         17  --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I don't want you

         19  to speak for him, I want you to read his mind. I'm

         20  going beyond that.

         21                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: Actually, I think

         22  that, you know, the federal government has shown a

         23  huge lack of leadership in this arena, and I think

         24  part of it is economic and I think that is one

         25  possibility that he could mean when he said
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          2  short-term economics, because this is just going to

          3  be a few more years of this administration in

          4  Washington.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          6                 I'd like to recognize Council Member

          7  Koppell for a question, then I'll come back.

          8                 Council Member Koppell.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you,

         10  Mr. Chairman.

         11                 Have you compiled a measurement of

         12  the various factors that go into global warming,

         13  looking at it from the point of view of the City?

         14                 In other words, do we know what

         15  percentage of the kind -- the bill I think talks

         16  about discharge of carbon dioxide. It talks about

         17  equivalent carbon dioxide and uses that as a

         18  measure.

         19                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: Correct.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: But it's not

         21  just carbon dioxide, it's other gases that create

         22  this, I assume that's not something strange to you

         23  --

         24                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: No, it's not strange

         25  to me, no.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: -- That's

          3  it's measured that way.

          4                 And I'm just curious as to whether

          5  the City or anybody has broken down the various

          6  components of those emissions so as to say, and I'm

          7  particularly interested in the percentage

          8  contributed to by automobiles or vehicles.

          9                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: Yes, the vehicles is

         10  probably, using the ICLEI modeling system, these, as

         11  I said earlier, these are all, the model relies on

         12  input of data from City records, so electric bills

         13  to see what the impact is from the building sector.

         14  There are five sectors that are analyzed, the

         15  building sector vehicles, wastewater treatment,

         16  streetlighting and there's another category that

         17  captures everything that's not captured by those.

         18                 And buildings is about 75 percent of

         19  the, accounts for about 75 percent of the inventory,

         20  and vehicles and the other three major sectors are

         21  each about nine or ten percent. But vehicles because

         22  City agencies self-report the amount of gasoline

         23  that they use, and we don't know each agency's mix

         24  of hybrid vehicles versus other types of vehicles.

         25                 It's more of an overall picture of
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          2  just vehicular emissions, but it's about somewheres

          3  between eight and ten percent of total inventory

          4  broken down as precisely as we would like to have it

          5  broken down, just because the date are not

          6  available.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: So then these

          8  actions in this bill are related to the City

          9  operations, nothing else?

         10                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: That's correct.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And do you

         12  have also a plan for other things going on in the

         13  City, to be done by the City?

         14                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: As I said during the

         15  testimony, we're planning to do a community-wide

         16  inventory that will require a little more work. It

         17  will be working with the utilities and probably

         18  academia and some of the environmental advocates to

         19  get that inventory off the ground.

         20                 And then, yes, once we have our hands

         21  around that, then we can start addressing how to

         22  best have the non-City residents of the City, you

         23  know, their part as well.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Mr. Chairman,

         25  I would suggest that this is a very incomplete
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          2  approach, although note necessarily an inappropriate

          3  one, but that we should be addressing really an

          4  overall view of this, not just City operations. And

          5  perhaps that should be incorporated separately.

          6                 I mean, I think it's almost unfair to

          7  go at it with just this one part.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure. And the

          9  bill, you know, does have a component that goes

         10  beyond the City operations that we have direct

         11  control over. And Dan Avery, the Policy Analyst, can

         12  give you some insight into how we go a little

         13  further in this bill, just those City operations

         14  that we have the most direct control over. Just that

         15  we're limited in other realms because we don't fully

         16  control them, but as a matter of fact,

         17  notwithstanding, we do what we believe is as far as

         18  we can go in the bell, you know, down that road. And

         19  Dan can give you, like right now on the side --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: No, I'm not

         21  asking for it now. But I think notwithstanding, some

         22  things will require legislation in Albany, maybe

         23  even in Washington, but I think that the City

         24  probably can in building code and otherwise do quite

         25  a lot even without those.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, I think

          3  with our green buildings bill, and other things that

          4  we're, you know, trying to do, it is our hope that

          5  green techniques and green buildings, which are all

          6  about saving energy and all about being more

          7  sustainable, have a ripple effect in saving energy,

          8  and therefore and saving on C02 production. And so

          9  we're pushing out on the balloon as in many vectors

         10  as possible.

         11                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: Can I just add

         12  something to that as well?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         14                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: You mentioned Local

         15  86, the Green Buildings Bill, which we're working on

         16  the implementation of currently, but also yesterday,

         17  the City, along with USEPA, sponsors a Green

         18  Buildings Competition every year, and yesterday was

         19  the awards ceremony, and, one, not only was it

         20  extremely well attended, but the projects were

         21  absolutely outstanding projects, and the private

         22  sector is really sort of champing at the bit to

         23  start using green technologies and actually far

         24  ahead of where the City is, and, you know, they

         25  recognize that, you know, all of these things are
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          2  tied together, you know, the energy savings, the

          3  energy efficiency, the cost effectiveness and the

          4  impact on greenhouse gas emissions. So, I think it

          5  will be, you know, maybe I'm going to be a little

          6  bit more optimistic, overly optimistic at this

          7  point, but I think it will not be that hard a sell

          8  to the private sector as well.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And what Bob is

         10  really saying that my Green Manufacturing Initiative

         11  that as part of the budget process is worthy of

         12  support of all of the members of the Council. That's

         13  what he was getting at there. So, thank you for that

         14  endorsement, Bob. I appreciate that.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you,

         16  Mr. Chairman.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, it's not

         18  even a lot of money, my budget initiative. I'll

         19  mention that just to mention it, Oliver. Okay, thank

         20  you. You know, when you meet with your delegates in

         21  the Bronx and stuff like that. It's the Green

         22  Manufacturing Initiative. I don't know if I

         23  mentioned that. So, thank you.

         24                 Getting back to your statement, with

         25  regard to putting the inventory on that -- you said
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          2  that the inventory is going to go on your website.

          3                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: It will be on our

          4  website.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And, so,

          6  clearly, and that's one of the things in the bill as

          7  well. As a matter of fact there's like a July 1st

          8  deadline.

          9                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: Right.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: For that of this

         11  year. So, that's really not an issue.

         12                 And that's one aspect of the bill

         13  that seemingly there would be no problem with; is

         14  that fair to say?

         15                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: If it's not June

         16  30th, it will be shortly thereafter.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         18                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: I mean, it's under

         19  scientific review and comments are due back this

         20  Friday, so it will give us a week or ten days to

         21  address those and get it in final shape.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. So, we got

         23  that, and then you indicate that you're also going

         24  to be doing some public education regarding global

         25  warming, and that's another element to the bill.
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          2  And, so, is there a reason why that hasn't happened

          3  until now? That's sort of the first question.

          4                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: Yes, I can answer

          5  that question very easily. Resources. Just, you

          6  know, it's great to line up all these things to do,

          7  but we need the money and the people to do them. And

          8  unfortunately, that's one of the things that the

          9  bill doesn't do, it doesn't give us any more

         10  resources. So, we're doing double duty as it is

         11  right now.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         13                 If it were a law, then you would have

         14  to say, well -- you're making my point. Thank you.

         15  That's one of the reasons why it's sometimes

         16  necessary to crystallize these in legislation.

         17                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: It's always useful if

         18  the law gives you some additional resources.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, yes. Just

         20  that when you -- we pass a law, the Mayor signs it

         21  into law, and next thing you know, you have to find

         22  the resources to do it. That's one of the fun things

         23  about them passing legislation, because it kind of

         24  forces it to happen.

         25                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: Would that be called
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          2  an unfunded mandate?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, but I mean,

          4  the Administration asks for money for things in the

          5  budget all the time. So, we can -- I don't think it

          6  can be an unfunded mandate if it's Council to the

          7  Mayor. If it's the feds to us, whatever, I think

          8  that's more the case.

          9                 And, so, that's not so much an issue,

         10  the education thing, because you're already doing

         11  it. And, so, is that an issue?

         12                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: The education thing I

         13  don't believe is an issue.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         15                 In your statement you indicate that

         16  our focus, you know, that the bill focuses

         17  predominantly on cutting energy, and there are sort

         18  of better ways to skin the cat, right?

         19                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: Well, there are more

         20  ways to skin a cat.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That's the, you

         22  know, case that you made. And, so, could you expand

         23  on sort of why our approach could or should be

         24  different and what approach you believe we should

         25  put? Because we really want to do this bill, so we
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          2  want to find out how we could make it better.

          3                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: I think these are,

          4  you know, these are really topics for a sort of roll

          5  up your sleeve discussion.

          6                 But as I mentioned, you know,

          7  reducing energies is not the only way to address C02

          8  emissions.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: The bill doesn't

         10  say that that's the only way, but it's your

         11  estimation that we focus a lot on that.

         12                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: Yes, it is. That's

         13  what the bill does predominantly focus on.

         14                 You know, there are a number of other

         15  things, the City is going to be aggressive in its

         16  tree planting over the next number of years. And as

         17  you know, when trees respire, they take in C02 --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         19                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: And emit oxygen. So,

         20  you know, that certainly is a very large

         21  counteractive measure to emissions. The expanding

         22  use of hybrid vehicles in the City, and other

         23  alternative fuel vehicles is another way to address

         24  this, and not as opposed to just by reducing energy

         25  efficiency in buildings.
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          2                 I mean, I think one of the things

          3  that Local Law 86 does, which was I think a really

          4  positive thing, was that in addition to requiring

          5  lead certification for certain classes of buildings

          6  was that there was a separate component that

          7  addressed specifically energy issues to reduce.

          8                 So, I think, you know, that's pretty

          9  much in place for both City built buildings and as

         10  well as privately built buildings that receive a

         11  certain percentage of City capital dollars.

         12                 So, I think, you know, that's very

         13  progressive, and I think there just might be, you

         14  know, if we actually have a chance to sit down to

         15  talk about this, you know, with more technical

         16  people, that we can craft something that's probably

         17  maybe a little more aggressive.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         19  you.

         20                 Just so I'm clear, you have

         21  opposition to require reductions, but you don't

         22  oppose let's say targets, ala the CCP? Is that your

         23  position?

         24                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: My position is that,

         25  you know, just writing 20 percent into a law is

                                                            46

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  really, you know, without seeing the analysis, it

          3  seems to me to be somewhat arbitrary. And I think

          4  that the targets need to be set with a little more

          5  extensive analysis which is really what we plan to

          6  do during the action plan phase.

          7                 And the other thing is, you know, the

          8  provision that says, you know, no fiscal year can

          9  have emissions greater than the prior fiscal year.

         10  As you know, I explained with a number of examples,

         11  you know, just doesn't seem to be scientifically

         12  feasible.

         13                 Again, you know, we're looking at C02

         14  emissions and climate change much more as a trend

         15  analysis than as, you know, measuring you know, how

         16  much is given off every year and what the impact is

         17  going to be. So, it's not like, you know, the

         18  measuring wind direction and velocity or air

         19  temperature or the amount of precipitation. It's a

         20  much more comprehensive measurement you have to

         21  make. And right now with the resource that we have

         22  and resources, even ICLEI recognized this, that it's

         23  not that you emitted 3,200,000 tons last year and

         24  you're going to emit 3,201,000 next year and

         25  therefore you're off. You know, we're looking at
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          2  trends related to set policy to address the issue.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

          4                 When is the projected completion date

          5  of the community inventory aspect?

          6                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: We don't have a

          7  particular time line yet. We're going to try to work

          8  that in. We feel that the City's action plan is

          9  probably somewhat of a higher priority than getting

         10  the community-wide one done.

         11                 I don't know, both John Dickenson, my

         12  Deputy who works on this pretty much full time as

         13  the project manager, and I are going to the ICLEI

         14  Congress next month and we'll have a chance to talk

         15  to some folks about that in more detail, and how to

         16  set the priorities.

         17                 ICLEI has been extremely supportive

         18  of the City and they've recognized the -- and

         19  they've worked with a lot of cities across the

         20  country, but they said by far and large, New York is

         21  the most complex to deal with, just because of the

         22  way it is.

         23                 So, they've actually tweaked their

         24  models to New York City on some occasions.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.
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          2                 I think we've --

          3                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: Exhausted.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We've covered

          5  it. I thank you for that resounding endorsement of

          6  my Green Manufacturing Initiative. I'll mention your

          7  name in our budget conferences. And thank you. Thank

          8  you for that.

          9                 While we work on global warming, I

         10  certainly look forward to continuing to work with

         11  you on, you know, staff-to-staff level to make sure

         12  that we can make the progress that we both want to

         13  make on this.

         14                 DR. KULIKOWSKI: Yes. Great.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Thank you.

         16  Thank you, Bob.

         17                 And the next witness is Ashok Gupta

         18  for NRDC.

         19                 Ashok, good to see you. Good to see

         20  you. Always a pleasure to see you.

         21                 MR. GUPTA: Good to see you, too.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And Donna will

         23  swear you in and we'll proceed.

         24                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: In the testimony that

         25  you're about to give, do you swear or affirm to tell
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          2  the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the

          3  truth?

          4                 MR. GUPTA: I do.

          5                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Do you have a

          7  written statement?

          8                 Okay, fine.

          9                 MR. GUPTA: You know me.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         11                 MR. GUPTA: Thank you very much for

         12  having this hearing. Good afternoon and thank you

         13  for your leadership on this issue and all the other

         14  environmental issues and everything that you and the

         15  Council do and also the other Council members and

         16  staff.

         17                 NRDC is strongly supportive of Intro.

         18  20. We think it's essential and necessary to have

         19  this bill passed and passed as soon as possible to

         20  get the urgent action that's necessary to address

         21  the problem. I think there is almost unanimous

         22  consensus about the problem. I don't think I need to

         23  spend any more time really talking about it. I think

         24  the Mayor's Office, Council members, and most of the

         25  country believes that the science is settled, there
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          2  may be an occasional person here or there who

          3  doesn't, and certainly the film by Vice President

          4  Gore really lays out as strong a case as you can in

          5  terms of why we need to take urgent action. And I

          6  think the emphasis on solutions and action is really

          7  what we need to be focused on, that's what the bill

          8  does. It really says let's roll up our sleeves and

          9  get to work and do as much as we can, and the

         10  question is how much can be done economically? And

         11  I'll address some of that, because we believe that

         12  what the bill calls for is cost effective and doable

         13  and will be good for the City's economy.

         14                 So, urgent action. The film also

         15  talked about we don't want to go from, you know,

         16  denial of the problem to despair. We believe, you

         17  know, there are technologies, there are solutions,

         18  and some of those have been put into effect, as you

         19  heard from Bob and the City. There have been a lot

         20  of good things going on and the City and the Mayor

         21  do deserve a lot of credit for lots of the things

         22  that have happened over the last ten years, and

         23  those things happened because they made economic

         24  sense. That's why the City was doing them. Or they

         25  made good public health sense. You know, we got rid
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          2  of coal-burning in schools because it was the right

          3  thing to do.

          4                 It may have had a cost associated,

          5  but it was still the right thing to do. We're

          6  putting fuel cells at sewage treatment plants, we

          7  did LED lights. We're doing a lot of good things

          8  because they make economic sense, or there are good

          9  public health consequences of doing it, and I think

         10  if you look at the opportunities there are just a

         11  lot of them. And the best potential study, by the

         12  way, done for those kind of energy efficiency

         13  measures and ways to save energy, it was by the

         14  state. New York State Energy Research and

         15  Development already did a comprehensive potential

         16  study for energy efficiency in New York and that

         17  study lays out in great detail the cost effective

         18  energy efficiency measures available Statewide and

         19  looks at it regionally as well. And the numbers that

         20  are in this bill are well within the cost effective

         21  estimates for energy efficiency savings for the City

         22  of New York.

         23                 And, again, going back to the

         24  leadership that the Mayor has shown on the

         25  litigation he has joined with the other Attorney
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          2  Generals on power plants, just to the west of us,

          3  has been very important, and I think right now

          4  taking action here, as we were dealing with

          5  challenges and problems throughout the country is

          6  critical, and this bill will be a very important

          7  message to the whole country and other cities about

          8  what they can and should do.

          9                 And we do believe that the

         10  legislation is important to, as you said, get the

         11  resources to make the commitment, and if -- and even

         12  with the Mayor moving in the right direction,

         13  legislation can help accomplish the goals.

         14                 I think as the Green Building Bill

         15  pointed out, I mean, you know, it really was

         16  important for this City to really do it

         17  legislatively and then it's easier in the Executive

         18  Branch to get the resources and make the commitment

         19  and do the hard work.

         20                 I also want to just quickly, other

         21  colleagues from other groups couldn't be here.

         22  League of Conservation Voters asked me to make sure

         23  that I passed on their strong support for this bill.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         25                 MR. GUPTA: So LCV is very supportive
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          2  and wished they could have been here, but I wanted

          3  to pass that on.

          4                 Other groups who might have had minor

          5  concerns, as Bob said, I think are minor and could

          6  easily be addressed. Clean Air - Cool Planet, whose

          7  board I serve on, I know is strongly supportive of

          8  the bill. Whatever their specific comment might have

          9  been in terms of how to do an inventory or other

         10  specific commentary that we'll have.

         11                 So, if we can all have specific

         12  things that we might want adjusted, but this does

         13  not in any way undermine anybody's interest and

         14  strong support of the environmental community. Not

         15  that I speak for all of them, but I can tell you

         16  that I can't think of an environmental group that

         17  wouldn't be strongly supportive of this piece of

         18  legislation.

         19                 To reiterate again the economic

         20  issues, we know that in order to reduce emissions in

         21  this City and nationally and globally, we're

         22  assuming increases in population, we're assuming

         23  economic growth rates. Nobody is saying this is not

         24  to be done while the economies grow, so you have

         25  robust economic growth. We know the City's
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          2  population is expected to increase over the next 20

          3  years, building in the population growth and the

          4  economic growth, you know, leaves you really about

          5  -- really the way you reduce your emissions is by

          6  improving the -- reducing the energy intensity.

          7                 So, energy efficiency we talk about

          8  is really how much energy you need to produce a

          9  dollar of economic output, and that's where the

         10  focus is and will continue to be for the next ten to

         11  20 years, because that's cost effective, and again,

         12  when you look at the studies, what's cost effective

         13  to reduce the energy intensity of the economy, there

         14  is just a lot of emphasis, a lot of results we can

         15  get there and it's not about sacrificing the

         16  economic growth of the City at all, and nobody is

         17  talking about that, so I think it can be done, and

         18  with the other things we want to achieve.

         19                 And then eventually we want to deal

         20  with the carbon intensity of our energy. So, the

         21  question of renewables and moving away from fossil

         22  fuels, will take longer to do, but we're focused on

         23  energy intensity first and then carbon intensity

         24  next, we can achieve the goals we need to achieve.

         25                 We know on the powerplant side,
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          2  repowering the powerplants improves the efficiency

          3  of powerplants. You can use half the energy and get

          4  the same amount of output. It has to be done. It

          5  will be good for consumers. It will be good for the

          6  environment.

          7                 We need to also, on buildings we've

          8  talked about energy efficiency, you know, 20, 30, 40

          9  percent improvements.  Efficiency of buildings with

         10  existing technologies have been demonstrated in the

         11  private sector and we can do a lot more there.

         12                 On the transportation side, whether

         13  it's vehicle efficiency, or you know, things we can

         14  do to reduce vehicle miles traveled, a lot of

         15  opportunities in the transportation sector, as well.

         16                 Just to show you really where things

         17  are headed in terms of how much can you do, and how

         18  cost effective it is, the leading developers in the

         19  City, and you talked about Bob Fox earlier, but

         20  others are really looking at doing buildings that

         21  are net zero emissions. So, in looking at figuring

         22  out, you know, and for the Trade Center site, for

         23  the Goldman Sachs building, there's a lot of

         24  interesting things you can do to actually not just

         25  reduce emissions by ten percent, 20 percent, 30
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          2  percent, but ask the question, what does it take to

          3  get to net zero emissions, which means by offsetting

          4  the emissions that you do have by buying renewable

          5  energy credits, you can get to net zero with an

          6  incremental cost that, you know, maybe some Delta

          7  right now, which will continue to decline. So, the

          8  marketplace is not far away from, at least in terms

          9  of new construction and new buildings going towards

         10  net zero.

         11                 I think in terms of existing

         12  buildings we have a lot of work to do. We need to

         13  look at how to increase the utilization of these new

         14  technologies in existing buildings, and I think we

         15  should look at ideas there in terms of what needs to

         16  be done in existing building stock because that's

         17  the greatest, you know, energy-using area. I think

         18  just to show what is possible and is being

         19  considered in new construction, the opportunities

         20  are quite significant.

         21                 So, on that note, I mean the bill is

         22  essential. It's necessary. It should be acted on

         23  quickly. I think the Mayor is moving in the right

         24  direction, I think with his Sustainability

         25  Initiative, and task force and commitments he's made
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          2  recently, I think this will be something that will

          3  just encourage them to do even more in this area.

          4                 So, thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

          6  Ashok.

          7                 Let me ask you this: You heard Bob

          8  Kulikowski's testimony, and he had his reasons --

          9  and, again, I don't want to recite it chapter and

         10  verse, he thought that we were too focused on energy

         11  cutting, rather than other ways, you know, it's not

         12  an exact science, you have to quantify, how do we

         13  know, and so we heard sort of like the straw man

         14  that he sort of put up or whatever. You know, what

         15  do you think of that?

         16                 I'm trying to craft a bill at the end

         17  of the day, and, so, after we do the hearing we're

         18  going to sit down and we're going to talk to these

         19  guys and we're going to say, you know, we want to

         20  move forward, and some of the points matter, some

         21  don't, so I need light shed on his position so I can

         22  take that into the discussions.

         23                 MR. GUPTA: You never can have a

         24  perfect bill that does everything, the question is

         25  how can you get at most of the things you want to
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          2  get at and make progress here.

          3                 So, I think the energy parts are the

          4  easiest ones to get a handle on, and we should move

          5  forward on those.

          6                 It doesn't mean that there aren't

          7  other ways to contribute. So, we're all for tree

          8  planting. It's a good idea. We want it to happen,

          9  but we don't have to necessarily address that in

         10  this bill in order to deal with the global warming

         11  issue.

         12                 So, I think we should, you know, it's

         13  the 80 percent, get as much as you can agreed upon

         14  and move in the right direction and move forward.

         15  The numbers can be looked at. I think the analysis

         16  is there, and we shouldn't be waiting for perfect

         17  analysis to move forward. But I think the idea here

         18  is to send a clear message that, you know, the

         19  downward trajectory that the City has been on will

         20  be continued and the City can find cost effective

         21  ways to reduce its emissions.

         22                 So, I think the bill is close, it can

         23  be tweaked, input is always good, a lot of good

         24  things Bob put on the table are things that can be

         25  talked about and addressed, but I don't think any of
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          2  them are deal breakers in any way, shape or form.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Good. I was

          4  hoping you were going to say that.

          5                 MR. GUPTA: So I think we, as

          6  reasonable people, can agree on this. I think the

          7  Green Building Bill was similar. I think there was

          8  concern.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         10                 MR. GUPTA: Issues were raised. They

         11  were dealt with, people moved forward and it's

         12  having an important impact in terms of what the

         13  Administration is now doing.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, Ashok.

         15  Thank you very much. I really appreciate always

         16  having the benefit of your views.

         17                 MR. GUPTA: We're always available to

         18  help in any way we can.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, I have a

         20  question.

         21                 Let me just go to a piece of Bob's

         22  statement. In his statement it said, Council

         23  believes that additional cost effective reductions

         24  in emissions could be achieved beyond a 20 percent

         25  goal, and the City should make a greater effort to
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          2  reduce -- yet, there is no justification provided

          3  for this belief. Yes, so we've got this sort of mini

          4  lecture in here and I just wanted to talk about

          5  that.

          6                 MR. GUPTA: Yes, again, the best

          7  analysis is the State's potential study on energy

          8  efficiency that's cost effective, and I think it's a

          9  good proxy for what's available in the City's own

         10  building stock. So, I think that probably is the one

         11  that I would point to, and I think one could try to

         12  redo it and wouldn't come up with much different

         13  numbers for the City buildings, and I think that,

         14  and the consultants who worked on that study have

         15  looked at this bill and find the numbers in this

         16  bill quite doable, and so I think you can really

         17  look to that potential, technical achievable

         18  potential analysis done by NYSERDA, the New York

         19  State Energy Research and Development Authority,

         20  coupled that years ago, and use that as the basis

         21  for this bill and the numbers in this bill.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, thank you.

         23  Thank you, Ashok.

         24                 MR. GUPTA: You're welcome.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: The next
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          2  witness, Dr. Kim  Knowlton, at Columbia University,

          3  School of Public Health, Department of Environmental

          4  Health Science.

          5                 DR. KNOWLTON: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Dr. Knowlton, I

          7  just want to thank you for coming. I appreciate

          8  that.

          9                 DR. KNOWLTON: You're welcome.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'm going to

         11  have Counsel to the Committee, Donna DeCostanzo,

         12  swear you in, and then we'll proceed.

         13                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         14  right hand.

         15                 In the testimony that you're about to

         16  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         17  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         18                 DR. KNOWLTON: I do.

         19                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         20                 DR. KNOWLTON: Good afternoon,

         21  Chairman Gennaro, and the members of the Committee.

         22  My name is Dr. Kim Knowlton. I'm a Post-Doctoral

         23  Research Scientist at Columbia University, Mailman

         24  School of Public Health, and I'm here today to

         25  support Intro. No. 20, and the Council's efforts to
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          2  develop this legislation aimed at reducing global

          3  warming pollution from City government operations.

          4                 As a health scientist, it is

          5  important to point out the controlling greenhouse

          6  gas emissions not only will help New York City's

          7  contribution to global warming, but will also reduce

          8  levels of pollutants that have direct impacts on the

          9  health of New York City residents, including fine

         10  particles and ozone precursors.

         11                 So this is really a win-win idea and

         12  we commend you in the legislation, the proposed

         13  legislation.

         14                 First, reducing greenhouse gas

         15  emissions will curb New York's contribution to

         16  global warming, which could have a range of dire

         17  consequences for New York City over the coming

         18  century. Everybody knows about the risks of sea

         19  level rise and severe storms. We heard some of the

         20  results from projected studies. Our research team

         21  has been looking at health impacts that could result

         22  from global warming, and our work suggests that heat

         23  stress, air quality and pollen could all become more

         24  severe problems in the City if climate continues to

         25  warm.
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          2                 These are impacts that are beginning

          3  to be evident now, but will really be felt by our

          4  children and their children. But reducing greenhouse

          5  gas emissions will also help improve local air

          6  quality today and have immediate health benefits.

          7                 Many sources of greenhouse gases, car

          8  and truck exhaust, emissions from generating

          9  electrical, power, and other industrial processes,

         10  are also sources of air pollutants like fine

         11  particles and chemicals that combine to form lung

         12  damage in ozone on the roadways and neighborhoods of

         13  New York City.

         14                 So, again, the proposed regulation

         15  would have local health benefits for City residents

         16  of both today and tomorrow.

         17                 Addressing climate change poses

         18  immense opportunities for positive actions. The

         19  proposed legislation would provide an incentive for

         20  local entrepreneurs to develop alternative energy

         21  technologies and systems and we are encouraged by

         22  the worldwide flood of interest in these new

         23  technologies that could benefit local air quality,

         24  health strengthen local economies and reduce overall

         25  fossil fuel use and global warming emissions.
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          2                 It is important for New York City to

          3  be a leader, as others have said today, in matters

          4  of such great local, national and global importance.

          5                 The nation, and indeed the world,

          6  watch what happens here in New York City. The

          7  proposed legislation will follow through in the

          8  directions agreed to under the Cities for Climate

          9  Protection Campaign in 2001, and the U.S. Mayors

         10  Climate Protection Agreement in 2005.

         11                 A few American cities, like Chicago,

         12  have gained an early reputation for progressive

         13  action on climate change issues, along with world

         14  cities like London and Toronto. New York City can

         15  and should play a leadership role on this critically

         16  important issue, which will benefit the health and

         17  economic vitality of its residents.

         18                 Thanks for the opportunity to present

         19  testimony.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you so

         21  much for being here. We are very, very grateful that

         22  you gave of your time to come here and give us the

         23  benefit of your views. We're very, very excited

         24  about doing this bill, and you'll be in the loop as

         25  we move forward on this, and I think you for all of
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          2  your work that you're doing at Columbia that helps,

          3  you know, helps pave the way for the legislative

          4  actions that we take here today. So, thanks for the

          5  inspiration. We deeply appreciate it.

          6                 DR. KNOWLTON: You're welcome.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And then we have

          8  a panel. Stephanie Tatham, of Environmental Defense;

          9  Marc Brammer of New York Climate Rescue, he is a

         10  good friend of this Committee, and Steve Winkelman,

         11  Center for Clean Air Policy.

         12                 Okay, if you have written statements,

         13  I will be happy to take them.

         14                 The Counsel to the Committee, Donna

         15  DeCostanzo, will do sort of a group swear-in, if you

         16  will, and then you can proceed with your testimony.

         17                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         18  right hand.

         19                 In the testimony that you're about to

         20  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         21  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         22                 MS. TATHAM: I do.

         23                 MR. BRAMMER: I do.

         24                 MR. WINKELMAN: I do.

         25                 (Witnesses sworn.)
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          2                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I guess why

          4  don't we start with Marc. He's been a real champion

          5  on this issue.

          6                 Do you have a statement, Marc?

          7                 MR. BRAMMER: I do. I had a

          8  presentation, but obviously we lack the facilities,

          9  so I've given up on that to make a --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, we want to

         11  watch you.

         12                 MR. BRAMMER: I have a hand-out there,

         13  which I would like to refer to just briefly.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I've got Center

         15  for Clean Air Policy.

         16                 MR. BRAMMER: That's it.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         18                 MR. BRAMMER: I apologize to all the

         19  members of the audience, because we don't actually

         20  have the --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         22                 MR. BRAMMER: As usual, I appreciate

         23  that we're moving forward on Intro. 20, and that

         24  this bill has consistently come up for review for

         25  discussion.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We thank you,

          3  Marc, for sort of hanging in there the whole time.

          4                 MR. BRAMMER: Yes. Well, let's see,

          5  typically I have come down here with a bunch of

          6  things to say and of course wanted to throw them all

          7  out and replace them with more contextual comments

          8  --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: No, that's fine.

         10  Yes, yes, yes. I appreciate it. Because we all want

         11  to fight global warming. We all know that global

         12  warming is bad. We all know that efforts to fight it

         13  are good, but, you know, this is a legislative

         14  hearing and any insight that you can give us on

         15  things that have been said that will help us in our

         16  deliberations with the Administration would be the

         17  most helpful thing you can deliver to us today.

         18                 MR. BRAMMER: Okay. We can consider

         19  all the climate science stuff, which is the

         20  beginning of this presentation as writ. Although, I

         21  do want to point out just an emphasis on the fact

         22  that the Greenland Ice Sheet, there have been a

         23  number of studies that have come out within the last

         24  six months that show that the Greenland Ice Sheet is

         25  melting much faster, twice as fast as previously
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          2  predicted.

          3                 If the Greenland Ice Sheet were to

          4  disappear, and it's predicted to do so, the

          5  majority, which is probably within the end of our

          6  life time, that would equal roughly 20 feet in sea

          7  level rise, and that's not something that this City

          8  economically, socially, in any way can absorb. So,

          9  we're talking about responding to this over the next

         10  15 years with kind of incremental approaches to

         11  greenhouse gas emissions and change in our energy

         12  policy.

         13                 That doesn't really address what

         14  needs to be done. Because there was a statement by

         15  the head of NASA, the NASA Climate Change Program,

         16  and basically what the statement was, was that we

         17  have ten years to really start preventing and

         18  stabilizing the climate before things like the

         19  melting of the Greenland Ice Sheet become

         20  unstoppable regardless of what we do.

         21                 So, I think to look at it and say,

         22  well, we have to worry about the short-term economic

         23  cost, because this might hurt the City in terms of

         24  our energy use and lower economic growth, when if we

         25  don't do some not just mitigation and adaptation,

                                                            69

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  but adequate transformation of our energy system in

          3  the next ten years, in order to stop these things,

          4  which will ostensibly basically destroy the economic

          5  life of the City, eradicating vast amounts of its

          6  coastline, it's two major airports, all at Jamaica

          7  Bay, would put them under at least ten feet of

          8  water, doesn't really -- those things are not really

          9  logical, that's not really logical to me.

         10                 So, while I commend the Mayor for

         11  taking steps, and I do think they are the right

         12  steps in the right direction and there has been some

         13  discussion, I think the lack of recognition of how

         14  exactly dire the predictions are, the sort of well,

         15  okay, we need to address it, we need to slow our

         16  emissions, but not this recognition that we need to

         17  not just mitigate and adapt, but we need to

         18  transform, and that transformation has to start with

         19  the City of New York.

         20                 We are a major contributor, and we

         21  are nearly one percent of the world's global

         22  emissions, we think it's .6 percent. For a single

         23  City, that's significant. So, for us to make changes

         24  as a huge economy, and we have an enormous effect on

         25  not just our local economy in the State of New York,
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          2  but all of New Jersey, Connecticut, the whole

          3  northeast region, things that we do here will

          4  definitely make a difference in terms of the

          5  economics.

          6                 So, what I would like to point out

          7  very, very quickly to you, is that it's not a matter

          8  of whether we can afford to make some radical

          9  changes, but whether we can afford to not make those

         10  changes.

         11                 And just quickly, I would like to

         12  come at this more from my economic background. My

         13  day job is as a Director of Research for a company

         14  called Inadvesta (phonetic), it advises

         15  institutional investors on things like how to deal

         16  with climate change, and if you look on the slide,

         17  it's just past -- let's see, one, two, three -- this

         18  one looking at the energy gas. If you look at the

         19  monthly price for oil for the past let's say ten

         20  years, the past couple of years in terms of heating

         21  oil prices, and then the third slide the last ten

         22  years in terms of monthly gas prices, we have seen a

         23  steady trend increase in prices, with massive spikes

         24  of up to more than 120 percent.

         25                 These trends are steadily going
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          2  upwards, and, you know, a number of -- like Goldman

          3  Sachs, for instance, predicted that oil would

          4  probably reach $100 a barrel.

          5                 So, when you start looking at energy

          6  prices and what the average worker is going to have

          7  to pay, not just for electricity but heating oil, to

          8  drive their cars, not doing very serious

          9  transformation of energy away from carbon sourced,

         10  carbon-based fuels, is really going to be a poor

         11  economic choice, if we don't make some very -- so,

         12  to me, I look at this and say we need to do more

         13  than this 30 percent, and not just in the City. We

         14  need to move beyond the City government. I think

         15  that Oliver Koppell was quite correct in pointing

         16  out that we need to move beyond that.

         17                 The other thing to point out in the

         18  next life is that the projections for energy costs,

         19  at least on the fuel oil for the price of oil, have

         20  been way off.

         21                 So, all of the projections that the

         22  City government, that the Mayor's office has been

         23  doing about what the actual cost -- they will come

         24  back to you and say, well, we can't do that, it's

         25  too expensive, well, they're doing it on the basis
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          2  of they have to project into the future what the

          3  cost of energy will be.

          4                 So, their projections are probably

          5  going to be based on what the energy DOE has said,

          6  and what the office of Energy Information

          7  Administration has said, the price of oil and

          8  natural gas and heating oil will be, and that's how

          9  they're doing a cost benefit analysis.

         10                 Well, as you can see, their

         11  projections have been enormous and off the mark. So,

         12  when they come back to you and they say, well, we

         13  don't think that these are cost, these more radical,

         14  and I'll put that term in quotes, these more radical

         15  ideas are moving to solar and fuel cells and wind

         16  power, these things are not feasible from a cost

         17  standpoint. I think what I would suggest is the

         18  Committee really come back and say, well, where are

         19  your energy price projections, in terms of how are

         20  you doing your cost benefit analysis, how are you

         21  determining that this stuff is not cost effective?

         22                 Have you looked at things like, and

         23  I'll sum up, one of the last slides I have, this

         24  looks like the creation of jobs from renewable

         25  energy sources. Solar and wind create nearly twice
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          2  -- and this is the most conservative graph that

          3  I've seen, create nearly twice as many jobs as the

          4  coal-based economy.

          5                 Now, obviously we are not within the

          6  City limits a coal-based economy, but I think that

          7  holds true. I mean, for fossil fuel-based --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Do you mean coal

          9  or carbon-based?

         10                 MR. BRAMMER: Well, the example here

         11  is coal. So, if you have a coal-based infrastructure

         12  for energy versus solar or wind, you're producing

         13  half as many jobs, in terms of man hours as you

         14  would if you were to move to a more renewable-based

         15  energy.

         16                 And if you look at, for instance, you

         17  go to oil, and start thinking about oil and natural

         18  gas, well, we don't produce those regionally, so

         19  economically, from a regional standpoint, it makes

         20  perfect sense for us to start investing our dollars,

         21  even if it's more expensive quote/unquote per, you

         22  know, energy unit in alternative energy, because

         23  that money is spent and generates economic activity

         24  locally.

         25                 So, to me, I look at this bill and I
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          2  say this bill is not an environmental bill. This is

          3  an economic development bill. And what it does, the

          4  reason why I think those percentage numbers that

          5  were being questioned by OEC, the Office of

          6  Environmental Coordination, I think the reason why

          7  those are not only adequate, maybe ought to be

          8  considered to be more aggressive down the line, is

          9  because we need to draw a line in the sand and say

         10  we need to push through legislation, not just for

         11  reduction in energy intensity, because that didn't

         12  get you anywhere, reducing the carbon intensity, if

         13  you're still using more and emitting more, doesn't

         14  address the problem. We need to start looking beyond

         15  this whole concept of carbon intensity and energy

         16  intensity and look at complete energy

         17  transformation, and that needs to be where we go.

         18                 So, I encourage you to stick to those

         19  numbers, those percentage reduction numbers and

         20  stick, and if possible, even look at making them

         21  more radical, more intensive, because we need to

         22  create incentive, and the only way to do that is to

         23  draw a line in the sand and say we need to do this.

         24  And by doing this we need to generate the economic

         25  activity. We force ourself to spend the money. And
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          2  that in and of itself will generate the economic

          3  activity, those things will feed back, more

          4  businesses will come as the City spends money on

          5  those things.

          6                 So, that's pretty much my statement

          7  and I appreciate your time and courage.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Marc.

          9  I appreciate that. We'll just hear all the panels,

         10  and then we'll see if we have any questions or

         11  comments for the panel.

         12                 MS. TATHAM: My name is Stephanie

         13  Tatham.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

         15                 MS. TATHAM: I'm a program associate

         16  at Environmental Defense.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Good to see you

         18  again.

         19                 MS. TATHAM: Thanks.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And you have a

         21  written statement?

         22                 MS. TATHAM: I do have a written

         23  statement.

         24                 I just want to mention also that I'm

         25  here today on behalf of Andrew Darryl.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh yes.

          3                 MS. TATHAM: He's the Regional

          4  Director of Environmental Defense. And also James

          5  Tripp, who is the General Counsel of Environmental

          6  Defense.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: James TB Tripp.

          8                 MS. TATHAM: James TB Tripp.

          9                 So, I'd like to begin by stating that

         10  Environmental Defense is strongly supportive of

         11  Intro. No. 21, and also New York City leadership to

         12  cut local contributions to global warming.

         13                 We believe that the effects of global

         14  warming are likely to be severe and expensive in New

         15  York City, and I'll get into those specific facts

         16  later in my testimony.

         17                 But before I do, I'd like to point

         18  out that action to reduce climate emissions often

         19  make good business sense.

         20                 For example, it fosters greater

         21  efficiency in the use of energy and cost savings in

         22  electricity use and reduced fuel demand for fleets.

         23                 Measures to reduce tailpipe pollution

         24  in the City can help climate but they also have

         25  ancillary benefits, like reducing smog and soot that
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          2  harm health and have health costs in the City.

          3                 Use of clean energy sources, like

          4  solar and wind, can help reduce the need to build

          5  more higher-polluting energy sources to handle peak

          6  demand, and attracting businesses that innovate on

          7  climate-friendly technologies and services can help

          8  spur jobs and tack into the City's track record of

          9  innovation.

         10                 Finally, and importantly,

         11  establishing a rigorous inventory of emissions and

         12  experience in managing those emissions will position

         13  the City well to take advantage of the future

         14  trading markets for carbon that may be established

         15  regionally, is already happening, or nationally.

         16                 It makes sense for New York City to

         17  lead on climate. The solutions put in place here can

         18  point the way for others in the public and the

         19  private sector and help create the momentum needed

         20  for comprehensive action to mitigate global warming.

         21                 Establishing a soft inventory

         22  creating responsibility in City government for

         23  managing that inventory, and establishing clear

         24  reduction requirements are the best way to motivate

         25  innovation.
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          2                 We also support the steps that the

          3  bill would take to lay the groundwork for active

          4  partnerships between the public and private sectors,

          5  and we suggest incorporating into those steps

          6  partnerships with the communities and small

          7  businesses to demonstrate how action on climate can

          8  deliver real benefits if all else fails.

          9                 I'd like to address now some of the

         10  reasons why we support the bill.

         11                 I think we all agree that global

         12  warming is happening, but it's important to remember

         13  that the threats imposed by increasing temperatures

         14  are expected to be much more powerful, and even more

         15  expensive to manage the longer we wait to curb

         16  greenhouse gas emissions. And I'd just like to

         17  quickly address a couple of the adverse effects

         18  we're likely to see as a result of global warming.

         19                 Warming caused by greenhouse gas

         20  emissions means more days on which ozone can build

         21  up unhealthful levels.

         22                 High concentrations of grammable

         23  ozone are already a problem in the City which is out

         24  of compliance with federal health-based air quality

         25  ozone standards in all five counties of New York
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          2  City.

          3                 This can cause acute respiratory

          4  problems, aggravate asthma and inflame lung tissue

          5  for average New Yorkers. These symptoms especially

          6  affect children, the elderly and those with lung

          7  conditions.

          8                 Another important health implication

          9  of global warming is that it brings an elevated risk

         10  of heat-related illnesses and deaths, particularly

         11  among the elderly and the poor. And just to give you

         12  an estimate of what could happen in New York City,

         13  summer heat-related mortality can increase 55

         14  percent by the 2020s, more than double by the 2050s

         15  and more than triple by the 2080s, and these are

         16  serious implications that we need to take action to

         17  address now.

         18                 Additionally, with higher sea levels,

         19  small storms could produce large amounts of

         20  flooding, similar to that which strong relatively

         21  infrequent storms produce today with some direct

         22  affects on low-lying levels of the City.

         23                 However, those affects will be most

         24  powerful when coupled with the likely increase in

         25  powerful storms, including hurricanes that global
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          2  warming is expected to bring.

          3                 I think many of us here in this room

          4  probably remember the 1992 Nor'easter which shut

          5  down New York City's subways, trains, highways and

          6  airports, battered coastal residences and caused

          7  substantial beach erosion.

          8                 By the Year 2100, the likelihood of

          9  storms at that same magnitude occurring drops from

         10  once every 13 years to about one to every year as a

         11  result of global warming. This is a serious problem

         12  and something that needs to be addressed.

         13                 I have a couple of general comments

         14  about the bill which we sent to the City Council in

         15  November and I would like to briefly reiterate. The

         16  first is that the foundation of any program to

         17  address global warming emissions is the integrity of

         18  the inventories used to measure the emissions and

         19  calculate reduction.

         20                 New York City is home to many leading

         21  experts on climate changes and economics whose

         22  knowledge should be tapped to make sure that those

         23  inventories are the best that they can be.

         24                 We think that the City Council,

         25  through Introduction No. 20, should require public
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          2  and scientific review of the City's inventory of

          3  greenhouse gas emissions, the local action plan and

          4  the community emissions inventory.

          5                 The next thing is we do agree with

          6  the Office of Environmental Coordination that

          7  natural annual temperature variations may skew the

          8  City's emissions inventory in a particular fiscal

          9  year. We don't think that that's a reason not to

         10  have requirements to reduce emissions of greenhouse

         11  gases, but we might propose a system of rolling

         12  averages, and that's outlined in my testimony, to

         13  account for natural variations.

         14                 Alternatively, the City could

         15  consider something like offsets. Over time we'd like

         16  the City to move towards a goal of climate

         17  neutrality. That means both reducing actual

         18  emissions and taking steps to offset emissions that

         19  can't be eliminated entirely. And we'd just like to

         20  point out that offsets could account for yearly

         21  increases, as a result of temperature variations.

         22  They could also account for growth. So, we urge the

         23  City Council to amend the bill.

         24                 The next thing is the local action

         25  plan. Ask OEC to consider the cost savings of taking
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          2  actions to reduce global warming emissions. We also

          3  think that OEC in addition to considering benefits

          4  should consider the costs of actions.

          5                 And then, finally, we think that

          6  deadlines ought to be written in a way that builds

          7  in opportunities for public review and full

          8  scientific integrity of the inventories.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you so

         11  much. I appreciate all of your strong support for

         12  the bill, and then just also I wanted to pass along

         13  my thanks to Andy and to Jim.

         14                 MS. TATHAM: Sure.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Mr. Winkelman.

         16                 MT. WINKELMAN: Thank you, Mr.

         17  Chairman, Council member. I appreciate the

         18  opportunity.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, also I want

         20  to thank you in a special way for coming here from

         21  Washington to be with us today. We appreciate that,

         22  appreciate all the effort you took to be with us

         23  today, and we look forward to hearing from you.

         24                 MR. WINKELMAN: I'll have to offset

         25  those omissions. I actually live in the City.  The
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          2  Center for Clean Air Policy is headquartered in

          3  Washington. I work from here. We have an office in

          4  Brussels and Toronto as well.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

          6                 MR. WINKELMAN: Our history goes back

          7  to in New York with working with the Governor on the

          8  Greenhouse Gas Task Force, and I chaired the

          9  transportation piece of that, and I'll direct some

         10  of my comments on that today.

         11                 I want to congratulate you for

         12  bringing this forward. We know it's critical for the

         13  livability of our City for really life on this

         14  planet. And having worked in half a dozen states,

         15  including now actively in California, working in

         16  developing countries, China, Brazil, India, Mexico,

         17  this issue is a tremendous challenge and tremendous

         18  co-benefits to the reductions of many, as you have

         19  pointed out, and many of the other speakers have as

         20  well.

         21                 I would like to make a few key

         22  points, and you'll see I'm straying from my comments

         23  already, but first of all, the community reduction

         24  aspect of this, Section 24-805, is really key.

         25  That's the most important thing, the City's
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          2  footprint is tiny compared to the total community

          3  emissions, and I'm sorry Mr. Koppell isn't here

          4  right now, but look at all the cars, private cars on

          5  the road, you've got to figure out how to address

          6  that.

          7                 What we need from a global

          8  perspective by the year 2050 is a 75 percent

          9  reduction in greenhouse gas emissions below 1990

         10  levels to stave off some of the most severe economic

         11  ecological health impacts, so that the seven percent

         12  of community-wide is an important step. And while

         13  the City's footprint itself is small, in terms of

         14  City activities, the influence the City can have on

         15  especially transportation and buildings is key. And

         16  I would encourage, first of all, obviously

         17  supporting this proposal, encourage the City to look

         18  at what are the unique elements under your control,

         19  under City authority, to impact? And that really

         20  comes down to the transportation sector and

         21  infrastructure investments.

         22                 If you look at what came out of the

         23  State Greenhouse Gas Task Force, very important

         24  measures in terms of the cap on powerplant emissions

         25  going to the Regional Greenhouse Gas Trading
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          2  Initiatives, the renewable portfolio standard

          3  adoption of California, C02 standards for cars.

          4                 If you look just at that car

          5  standard, which would be about a 30 percent

          6  reduction in greenhouse gas emissions from cars by

          7  the Year 2030, the amount of driving measured in

          8  vehicle miles per hour is going to increase by that

          9  same amount in that same time frame.

         10                 So, emissions are flat, not leveling

         11  off. There is discussion of the City's emissions

         12  declining, but if you look at the community-wide

         13  footprint, that's increasing. And there are, in

         14  terms of the follow-up at the State level of looking

         15  at increasing support for transit, walk and bike,

         16  the State hasn't followed through on that.

         17                 And obviously Transit is a big deal,

         18  you're going to have to continue working with Albany

         19  and Washington on adjusting formally, et cetera. But

         20  there are a lot of things under the City's control I

         21  think that can have a big impact. Amsterdam

         22  Netherlands has about a 30 percent mode split for

         23  bikes, a third of all trips are on bikes. Why can't

         24  New Amsterdam do the same thing? Times Square would

         25  be more pedestrian friendly, you know, less space
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          2  for cars. The congestion pricing proposal presents

          3  an important opportunity to provide revenues, reduce

          4  emissions and make some leadership. Obviously, the

          5  brownfield and Land Use set of issues are important.

          6                 I think that the piece that I will

          7  leave you with is obviously continuing the City's

          8  leadership on this set of issues on how green urban

          9  living is, and how really New York City can

         10  epitomize that. But looking at, we're starting an

         11  initiative called the Urban Leaders Initiative,

         12  working with King County, with LA, recruiting folks

         13  in Boston and some other cities, talking to some New

         14  York City folks in the hallway, about looking at

         15  climate change mitigation and adaptation and looking

         16  at what public and private money is going to go into

         17  infrastructure over the next 25 years. We're talking

         18  over hundreds of billions of dollars, and saying how

         19  can that be adjusted in a way that looks at reducing

         20  greenhouse gas emissions, looks at the exposure and

         21  vulnerability of that infrastructure to the impacts

         22  of climate change.

         23                 So, it's money we're going to spend

         24  anyways and it's a matter of directing that in a way

         25  that leads this in ability for the City and the
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          2  planet. So, I congratulate you on the effort to

          3  support you, and am happy to be of any assistance I

          4  can.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, thank you.

          6  Thank you. And that's what I want to just talk

          7  about, how you folks can be of assistance. I know

          8  you've been in contact with the Counsel of this

          9  Committee, Donna DeCostanzo, and anything that you

         10  can think of to help us make this bill more

         11  desirable. We've got your comments that you

         12  forwarded to us today. We would be greatly

         13  appreciative if something comes to mind after the

         14  fact, please let us know because we are very serious

         15  about this.

         16                 I just wanted to throw out a question

         17  which you can each take a shot at, if you wish.

         18                 It's Bob Kulikowski's position that

         19  if there is not -- that if you don't have extensive

         20  analysis and modeling to support the targets, then

         21  you shouldn't have targets. You know, how do you

         22  respond to this statement?

         23                 MR. WINKELMAN: Yes, I have worked in

         24  places that have done it both ways. I'm trying to

         25  remember how we did it in the State. There was a
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          2  target set by the Governor. Other places have done a

          3  bit of a bottom-up analysis. Everyone is coming into

          4  around the same set of numbers, and you all are

          5  within that range. So, there are studies, we did a

          6  serious economic analysis of the California climate

          7  change plan, so there is a lot out there to show

          8  what can be done cost effectively that you don't

          9  necessarily have to reinvent the wheel on that.

         10                 And Marc, your point about what we

         11  need to go the next step, what may be important to

         12  encourage action is really looking at the

         13  opportunity cost of not acting quickly and

         14  understanding what that means for health, for wasted

         15  infrastructure funding, for the extra spending on

         16  oil and to frame things.

         17                 You know, some of these numbers we're

         18  not going to know with precision, but we know if we

         19  keep going like we are, we're going to waste a lot

         20  of money, spend a lot of money, if we do things a

         21  bit smarter, we can save a lot, and I think that

         22  framing is probably more important than waiting for

         23  some artificial precision of we know exactly what's

         24  going to happen.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.
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          2                 MR. BRAMMER: I would also mention, I

          3  spent my past ten years looking at large

          4  corporations, global corporations, multi-billion

          5  dollar corporations, and they have equally large --

          6  they're not physically the size of New York City's

          7  government, but we're talking, you know, General

          8  Motors size corporations, there's hundreds and

          9  hundreds of plants worldwide, and one of the things

         10  that we've discovered is what gets measured gets

         11  managed, and I think that's one of the reasons why

         12  we have targets, because without the target, you

         13  don't really end up with an effective achievement.

         14  You don't know at what point -- how do you judge

         15  your progress? How do you set a target? How do you

         16  do the cost benefit analysis? How do you determine

         17  what, if you don't say this is where we want to get,

         18  and see what it means to target.

         19                 And the example that I would really

         20  point back, if I can find a report I will get it to

         21  you, the analysis done that looked at the reduction

         22  of S0X and N0X in the United States and compared

         23  that to the federal Republic of West Germany,

         24  actually this was before the unification, and then

         25  through the unification process. In Germany they had
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          2  a massive problem with acid rain that was dealt with

          3  with an absolute, you know, no -- with an absolute

          4  target. And the German achieved in three years, with

          5  an absolute target, what it took the United States

          6  ten years to achieve with market incentives, with a

          7  market-based trading system.

          8                 Now, I'm not saying that a

          9  market-based trading system is bad, I think it's a

         10  very effective tool that ought to be used. Without

         11  the targets, without saying this is where you need

         12  to get to by this time point, your actions aren't as

         13  effective. So, it's basically you're almost

         14  guaranteeing that you will be less effective without

         15  drawing a line in the sand. And I'll see if I can

         16  find the report for you --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         18  you.

         19                 MR. BRAMMER: -- Because it was very

         20  effective.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We would

         22  appreciate that. And I just want to thank you all

         23  again for being here. As I said a couple of times

         24  already, we're very serious about this, very

         25  grateful to have your important help on this.
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          2                 So, thank you. Thank you, one and

          3  all.

          4                 And with no one else wishing to be

          5  heard, this hearing is adjourned. Thank you,

          6  everyone, for participating.

          7                 (Hearing concluded at 3:00 p.m.)
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